
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 23rd January 2020
   at 2.00 pm (Drawing Room)

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 7th November, 2019 
and the Special Licensing Regulatory Committee held on 18th 
December, 2019.

3 - 18

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Cumbria Zoo Special Inspection Update 
 

19 - 32

(D) 8.  Licensing Delegated Decisions (October - December 2019) 
 

33 - 36

PART TWO 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 1 AND 2 OF PART
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006

(D) 9.  Application for Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence 
 

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Barlow
Biggins
Callister (Chairman)
Gawne
Hall
Maddox
McEwan
Mcleavy
Seward (Vice-Chair)
Wall

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday, 15th January 2020



LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 7th November, 2019
at 2.00 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister (Chairman), Seward (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, D. Edwards, W. McClure, McEwan, Maddox, Ronson and Wall.

Officers Present:- Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Ivor Churcher 
(Commercial Team Leader), Katherine Benson (Licensing Officer), Debbie Storr 
(Principal Legal Officer), Jon Huck (Monitoring Officer) and Sharron Rushton 
(Democratic Services Officer).

22 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gawne, Hall, R. McClure and 
McLeavy.  Councillors D. Edwards, W. McClure and Ronson had substituted for 
Councillors Gawne, R. McClure and McLeavy respectively for this meeting only.

23 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 3rd October, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

24 – Addition of Booking Fee to the Table of Fares

The Licensing Officer reported that Section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (the Act) provided that a District Council may fix 
the rates or fares within the district as well for time and distance, and all other 
charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire 
of a vehicle, to be paid in respect of the hire of hackney carriages by means of a 
table (a table of fares) made or varied in accordance with the provisions of this 
section. This section applied only to Hackney Carriage vehicles. 

Members resolved at the Licensing Regulatory on 3rd October, 2019 to make no 
change to the Table of Fares, but for a review to take place annually.

There were representations made to the Council on the booking fee after the report 
had been published which required further consideration by Members. The update 
from the Furness Taxi Trade Association had also not been reflected and there was 
a member of the trade who wished to speak at the previous Licensing Regulatory 
Committee. Any requests to speak were at the discretion of the Chair. 

If the Council decided to vary the rates or fares, it must place a notice in a local 
newspaper. This must set out the table of fares and specify a period of at least 14 
days in which objections to the table of fares or variation could be made. In addition, 
a copy must be made available for inspection at the Council’s offices for the same 
period. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



If no objections were made to the table of fares or variation within the period 
specified in the notice or if all objections were withdrawn, the table of fares comes 
into operation on the date specified in the notice or the date of withdrawal of the 
objection or, if more than one objection was received, the date of the last objection 
was withdrawn, whichever date was the later. 

If objections were received and not withdrawn, the Council must consider those 
objections and specify a date, not later than two months after the date specified in 
the notice, on which the table of fares shall come into force, with or without 
modifications as decided by the Committee. 

Members were aware that on 22nd July, 2019 all hackney carriage drivers and 
hackney carriage vehicle owners (172 in total) were sent a consultation letter about 
the Hackney Carriage Fare Review.

During the consultation for the Hackney Carriage Fare Review which Members voted 
on at Licensing Regulatory Committee on 3rd October, 2019, feedback was received 
from a new Private Hire Operator, UBARO, on 5th August, 2019. The feedback was 
reproduced within the report.

Following this review, the Council had been in receipt of 4 further representations 
specifically about the booking fee. The additional representations were attached as 
appendices to the report.

The Furness Taxi Trade Association represented the views of both the hackney 
carriage and private hire trade. Members would need to consider that the fares were 
in relation to hackney carriages only, and some of the trade responses would be 
formed with influence from those who represented both hackney and private hire.

It was not known the exact split of hackney and private hire drivers within the 
Association; however the Association had recently stated that it represented 
approximately 126 drivers in total.

The Council currently had a total of 283 licensed drivers. In terms of driver licence 
holders, 96 were hackney only, 120 private hire only and 53 who held both a 
hackney and private hire licence (known as a dual licence). There was also an 
additional 14 who held separate private hire and hackney licences (as dual licences 
were not available at the time of applying).

Whilst the Council did not currently have a general public participation scheme for 
ordinary meetings of the Licensing Committee, any public participation would be 
subject to the following criteria:- 

(i) When the Licensing Committee or Licensing Regulatory Committee 
was considering a matter of policy or other general licensing matters, 
any persons who wished to make representations may be allowed to do 
so at the Chair's discretion. If the Chair consents, any such 
representations would be time limited to three minutes for individuals 
and five minutes for an organisation / association within a maximum 30 
minute time slot. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



(ii) People wishing to make a representation under paragraph (i) above, 
should make a request to do so, in writing to the Public Protection 
Manager, at least 2 working days before the Committee meeting. 

(iii) After making their representation to the Committee it would be at the 
Chair’s discretion whether they were questioned or whether they could 
ask questions of Members or Officers. 

(iv) If a number of people wished to make similar representations, a 
spokesperson should be appointed and that individual be given five 
minutes time to present their representation. 

The current Table of Fares was:-

Normal Fare (7am until midnight)
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £2.40
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.20
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.10

For hirings begun between midnight and 7.00 a.m.
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £3.60
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161
metres (1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.30
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.15

For hirings on all bank holidays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £4.80
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.40
Waiting time for each 30 seconds £0.20

Soiling charge - £10 outside/maximum £100 inside
Payment of estimate may be required as deposit at start of journey
Extra charge of £0.20 per person over two people.

Section 65 of the 1976 Act provided that Council’s may also fix other charges with 
the connection of hiring a vehicle. For example, the Council currently caps a soiling 
charge at £100.

During the consultation, a request was received from a new Private Hire Operator, 
UBARO, to authorise a booking fee to be charged in relation to the hiring of a 
hackney carriage vehicle.

Feedback from the Trade suggested the majority were in support of a booking fee.

It was in the public interest for consumers to have choice and different options 
available when ordering a taxi. There was no compelling evidence that introducing a 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



choice of booking mechanisms would adversely affect the interests of the travelling 
public or affect levels of service.

Operators had discretion whether to charge a booking fee. It was likely some 
Operators would not charge the booking fee even if the table of fares allowed for it. 
Some operators currently offered competitive fares even though they were permitted 
to charge more.

Although hackney carriages could work on the rank or be hailed in the street, a high 
number of hackneys in the Borough worked for a Private Hire Operator.

The Council had no power to regulate fares that Private Hire Operators charged for 
the dispatch of private hire vehicles. Therefore if they wanted to charge a booking 
fee for the dispatch of private hire vehicles, this would not need to be authorised by 
the Council.

UBARO intended to be an app based operator and all bookings and hirings from 
their customers would be through the app. UBARO would like to charge customers a 
booking fee for using the app, however this was currently not authorised by the 
Council in the table of fares. 

Many other Councils had included provision for a booking fee in their table of fares, 
Lancaster City Council being the nearest neighbouring authority.

At the Taxi Working Group held on 9th August, 2019, including a booking fee being 
included in the table of fares was discussed and minuted as:-

The majority agreed that introducing booking fees would be beneficial to them 
as drivers. This led to a discussion on other council fees like Lancaster. It was 
discussed around the meeting that £3.50 was an idea but it hadn’t yet been 
discussed within the trade.

A copy of the Minutes from the Taxi Working Group were attached as an appendix to 
the report.

Any booking fee was a maximum and the proprietor/operator had discretion as to 
whether they wished to charge it. Members also had discretion as to what the 
maximum booking fee was set at.

Members would be required to instruct Officers to publish a Notice of Variation in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 if they agreed a booking fee should be included 
within the table of fares. 

A number of members of the Taxi Trade had requested, adhering to the criteria, to 
address the Committee.  A number of members of the Taxi Trade addressed the 
Committee.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Seward to make no 
change to the Table of Fares, but for a review to take place annually.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed to make no change to the Table of Fares, 
but for a review to take place annually.

25 – Licensing Fee Setting

The Public Protection Manager submitted a report setting out the proposed fees for 
those licensing regimes where the Council had the power to set its own fees. The 
fees were based on full cost recovery following an annual review and public 
consultation.

The proposed fees, would enable the Council to recover its reasonable costs in 
processing and determining licence applications and also to achieve compliance with 
the appropriate legislation. The purpose of the report was to set the Licensing Fees 
for 2019/20, effective from 1st January 2020.

He reported that the majority of locally set licensing fees had undergone an annual 
review following the draft out-turn budget, with the exception of those locally set fees 
under the Gambling Act 2005. The Licensing Regulatory Committee had delegated 
authority to set the Council’s licensing fees and proposed fees were based on the 
out-turn budget for the previous year (2018/19) and full cost recovery.

The total cost of delivering the Council’s licensing functions in 2018/19 was 
£336,938.62. This included the cost of the licensing functions whose fees were 
prescribed by statute, for example the Licensing Act 2003 and other non-
rechargeable activities. These figures had been deducted from the total figure which 
left a base figure of £154,058.48 to be recovered through the following licence fees:-

 Hackney carriage drivers’ and vehicle licences;
 Private hire drivers’, vehicle and operator licences;
 Street Trading consents;
 Sex Establishments;
 Pleasure Boats & Boatmen;
 Animal Welfare Licensing (Pet Shops, Animal Borders, Exhibitors, Dog 

Breeders, Dangerous Wild Animals, Riding Establishments and Zoos);
 Scrap Metal Dealers; and
 Skin Treatments (Tattooists, skin piercers etc.).

Members had been requested to note that the income for the same period (2018/19) 
was £102,717.41, leaving a total deficit of £51,341.07 for the year.

In addition, at its meeting on 17th May, 2018, Members agreed to recover the 
previous years deficit against a number of license holders and applicants over two 
years, to ease the financial burden on individuals, leaving an outstanding deficit of 
£22,161.30 from:-

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers £12,183.69
Private Hire Vehicles   £5,121.51
Private Hire Operators   £1,728.69
Pleasure Boats and Boatmen      £472.13

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



The projected income from the licensing fees detailed below for 2019/20 was 
£159,389.67. Income fluctuated year on year, as licences were granted for different 
durations (e.g. 1 / 3 / 5 years).

Proposed Fees effective from 18th November 2019

APPLICATION 
FEE GRANT FEE

Licence Fee 
(Rounded) 

£

Type of Licence
Total Part A (inc 

% Surplus / 
Deficit 

Adjustment)

Total Part B 
(inc % Surplus 

/ Deficit 
Adjustment)

*Fee NOT 
Subject             
to the 

European 
Services 
Directive

Current 
Fees

(Total) 
(2018/19)

Taxi & Private Hire Licences    
Hackney Carriage Driver (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 197 £ 178

Hackney Carriage Driver (3 Yr) *£ 309 £ 257

Hackney Carriage Driver - Renewal (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 177 £ 157 

Hackney Carriage Driver - Renewal (3 Yr) *£ 289 £ 235 

Private Hire Driver (1 Yr) Exceptional Circumstances *£ 197 £ 178

Private Hire Driver (3 Yr) *£ 309 £ 257

Private Hire Driver -  Renewal (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 177 £ 157 

Private Hire Driver - Renewal (3 Yr) *£ 289 £ 235 

Driver Dual Licence - New (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 210 £ 187 

Driver Dual Licence - New (3 Yr) *£ 331 £ 304 

Driver Dual Licence - Renewal (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 204 £ 181 

Driver Dual Licence  - Renewal (3 Yr) *£ 334 £ 298 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle (New & Renewal) *£ 189 £ 157 

Private Hire Vehicle (New & Renewal) *£ 168 £ 141 

Private Hire Operator NEW (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 312 £ 239 

Private Hire Operator RENEWAL (1 Yr) Exceptional 
Circumstances *£ 312 £ 427 

Private Hire Operator NEW / RENEWAL (5 Yr) *£ 554 £ 427

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



Street Trading Consents
Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) ANNUAL 
(NON-FOOD) £ 123 £ 80 

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) ANNUAL 
(FOOD - Registered with Barrow BC)) £ 141 £ 80 £ 462

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) ANNUAL 
(FOOD - Registered outside Barrow BC) £ 142 £ 134 £ 462

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) MOBILE 
(NON-FOOD) £ 138 £ 78 

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) MOBILE 
(FOOD Registered with BBC) £ 157 £ 78 £ 309

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) MOBILE 
(FOOD Registered outside BBC) £ 157 £ 134 £ 309

Town Centre Street Trading
Street Trading Consents TOWN CENTRE (New & 
Renewal) ANNUAL (NON-FOOD) £ 120 £ 578 

Street Trading Consents TOWN CENTRE (New & 
Renewal) ANNUAL (FOOD - Registered with Barrow BC) £ 140 £ 577 £ 462

Street Trading Consents (New & Renewal) ANNUAL 
TOWN CENTRE (FOOD - Registered outside Barrow BC) £ 140 £ 632 £ 462

Street Trading Events
Street Trading Consents EVENTS (Non-Food) £ 116 £ 86 £ 293

Street Trading Consents EVENTS (Food - Registered 
with Barrow BC) £ 136 £  85 £ 293

Street Trading Consents EVENTS (Food - Registered 
outside Barrow BC) £ 136 £ 140 £ 293

Street Trading Consents EVENTS (Existing Barrow BC 
Consent Holders / Retailers) £ 53 £ 64 £ 293

Street Trading (Continental/Travelling Markets)
Street Trading Consents TOWN CENTRE (Markets) Up to 
10 Stalls £ 166 £ 999 £ 1,680

Street Trading Consents TOWN CENTRE (Markets) Up to 
15 Stalls £ 166 £ 1,447 £ 1,680

Street Trading Consents TOWN CENTRE (Markets) Up to 
20 Stalls £ 166 £ 1,896 £ 1,680

Sex Establishments
Sex establishments (New) £ 258 £ 71 £ 157

Sex establishments (Renewal) £ 240 £ 71 £ 138

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Boats & Boatmen
Pleasure boats £ 160 £ 50 £ 223 

Boatmen £ 130 £ 50 £ 198 

Animal Welfare (*an additional VETs fee may be payable)
Selling Animals as Pets * £ 156 £ 105 £ 286

Provision of Boarding for Cats or Dogs * £ 156 £ 105 £ 159

Provision of Home Boarding for Dogs * £ 156 £ 105 £ 132

Provision of Day Care for Dogs * £ 156 £ 105 

Hiring Out Horses * £ 156 £ 105 £ 222

Breeding Dogs * £ 156 £ 105 £ 182

Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition * £ 156 £ 105 

Variation Application for above. * £ 114 £ 93 

Dangerous Wild Animals * £ 161 £ 92 £ 200

Scrap Metal
Scrap Metal dealers (Premises) *£  328 £ 261 

Scrap Metal dealers (Collectors) *£  286 £ 315 

Scrap Metal dealers (Variation) *£ 96 £ 142 

Skin Treatments
Skin (Person) £ 156 £ 60 £ 133 

Skin (Premises) £ 144 £ 60 £ 160 

Zoo (* additional Defra Inspectors / Inspections Fees may be payable)
Zoo (Dis-Application of the Act) * £ 121 £ 35 £ 150 

Zoo (New) * £ 5,246 £ 176 £ 24,170 

Zoo (Renewal) * £ 5,246 £ 176 £ 24,170 

Zoo (Transfer) * £ 1,187 £ 75 £ 1,474 

Zoo Maintenance (Calculated Annually) £ 6,185 

New and Amended Licensing Regimes

On 31st October, 2018, the new Animal Welfare Regulations 2018 came into force. 
A new fee structure was proposed. The Regulations provided for the determination 
of a fee payable upon application and a grant fee. Individual licence applications 
were assessed by a veterinary surgeon where necessary. The applicant would also 
be responsible for the vets fees.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Following this years review of Street Trading and the removal of the town centre 
prohibitions, a range of Consent fees had been calculated. 

The Deregulation Act 2015 amended the section of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 that dealt with the duration of drivers’ licences 
for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles and for private hire operators. 
Although the legislation stated that a driver’s licence should be granted for 3 years 
and an operator’s licence for 5 years there were circumstances in which it may be 
appropriate to grant a licence for a shorter period, for example; where the licence 
holder does not have the right to work in the UK beyond a specific date. 

Members agreed a phased implementation of these provisions, based on the DBS 
renewal. Officers had encouraged licenced drivers to take advantage of the new 
amendments; a 3 year licence fee was less expensive than three 1 year licences 
however, to date only around 50% of drivers held a 3 year licence. Similarly, 60% of 
Operators held a 5 year licence. 

Furthermore, the Councils adopted policy on the fitness of licensed drivers stated:-

Licences would be issued for a three year period, in the absence of any other 
limitation that causes the Council to issue a shorter duration licence.

To complete the timely implementation, from the date of approval of these fees, 
drivers licences would only be issued for 3 years and operators for 5 years. 
However, Members were asked to approve 1 year fees for both licensed drivers and 
operators, to be applicable in extenuating circumstances only, such as for medical 
reasons or due to an individuals immigration status.

Significant Variations from Current fees

• Private Hire & Taxi Licensing. Increase due to recovery of 2017/18 and 
2018/19 deficits;

• Street Trading, Pleasure Boats & Boatmen. Increase due to recovery of 
2018/19 deficit;

• Animal Welfare. New Licensing regime; and

• Zoo Maintenance. Decrease due to reduced compliance monitoring 
(improved compliance) and inspections being recharged directly.

Fee Setting Methodology

European Services Directive

The European Union Services Directive - 2006/123/EC (the Directive) was given 
effect in UK law via the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 (SI2009/2999). This 
Directive and the Regulations contained provisions about the fees which may be 
charged under relevant licensing regimes within the scope of the Directive. In 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



particular Licensing Authorities may not set fees that were dissuasive, and any fees 
must be reasonable and proportionate to the cost of the licensing process and the 
issuing of the licence. These provisions had been taken into account in setting the 
fees set out in this report.

In addition, a recent judgment of the Supreme Court in a case involving Westminster 
City Council had provided further clarification of the type of costs which may be 
taken into account when setting fees, and when fees may be payable. The judgment 
of the Supreme Court established a licensing regime may operate on the basis that 
an applicant must pay:-

(i) on making the application, the costs of the application process and,
(ii) on the application being successful, a further fee to cover the costs of the 

running and enforcement of the licensing regime.

Following this decision, the locally set licensing regime fees, for which the Directive 
related had been calculated so that they identify the costs for processing the 
application through to determination (Part A) and the cost for running and the 
enforcement of the licensing regime (Part B).

Methodology

The methodology used to calculate the fees was based on actual time spent by 
Officers and associated costs of administering and operating the licensing regime at 
full cost recovery. The fees took account of:-

 Administration costs associated with the initial application and fee handling;
 Officer costs;
 Direct costs such as the cost of identification badges, plates and DVLA checks;
 Support Services costs including Recharges, Overheads, IT maintenance, 

Professional advice and Advertising;
 Administration and Management costs; and
 Adjustments to take into account any surplus or deficit from the 2018/19 out-

turn budget.

The full detailed fee setting methodology had been appended to the report.

Public Consultation

Prior to this meeting a copy of the proposed fees and charges were sent direct to the 
Furness Taxi Trade Association, all Private Hire Operators and to those licensees 
who the Council held a valid email address in relation to taxi and private hire 
licensing (304 individual email addresses), the Street Trading Consent Holders, 
Barrow BID and the Zoo Operator regarding their annual Maintenance fee, 
requesting any pre-consultation comments.

Members had been requested to note that two responses had been received in 
relation to Taxi and Private Hire Licensing, one response in relation to Street Trading 
Fees and one response in relation to the Zoo Maintenance fee.  All the responses 
were reproduced within the report.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Public Consultation

All of the approved fees were to be published in The Mail from Monday 11th 
November 2019. In addition, there was a specific formal consultation period for 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licence fees and for Private Hire 
Operators fees, giving members of the public 28 days to make representations. A 
public notice would also be on display at the Town Hall and on the Barrow Borough 
Council Website. 

Any adverse responses, as part of the formal public consultation, would be brought 
back to this Committee for consideration.

Partial Deficit Recovery

Members noted that a number of licences types had seen a significant increase from 
the previous year. This was in the main, due to full recovery of the previous deficit.

The administration and operation of the licensing regime was able to operate at full 
cost recovery. However, should Members have considered amending the proposed 
licensing fees, which had been the practice adopted in previous years to ease the 
burden on individual licence holders, Officers would calculate the remaining deficit 
accordingly and recharge in the following year.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Maddox that:-

a) To approve the fees detailed in this report to achieve full cost recovery with 
effect from 1st January 2020; 

b) To instruct Officers to publish the Notice of Licensing Fees and Charges and 
conduct the formal 28 day consultation on Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Vehicle Licence fees and for Private Hire Operators fees; and

c) To confirm that from the date of approval of these fees, private hire and 
hackney carriage drivers licences would only be issued for 3 years and private 
hire operators for 5 years, in accordance with Sections 53 and 55 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, unless there were 
extenuating circumstances such as an individuals immigration status.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed to:-

a) To approve the fees detailed in this report to achieve full cost recovery with 
effect from 1st January 2020; 

b) To instruct Officers to publish the Notice of Licensing Fees and Charges and 
conduct the formal 28 day consultation on Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Vehicle Licence fees and for Private Hire Operators fees; and

c) To confirm that from the date of approval of these fees, private hire and 
hackney carriage drivers licences would only be issued for 3 years and private 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



hire operators for 5 years, in accordance with Sections 53 and 55 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, unless there were 
extenuating circumstances such as an individuals immigration status.

26 – Licensing Delegated Decisions (September 2019)

The Public Protection Manager reported that at its meeting on 5th September, 2019, 
Members had requested a monthly report of the Public Protection Managers 
delegated decisions made under Part 3(2) Section I of the Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegations to Officers with regards to the Councils Licensing functions.

A summary of the delegated decisions made between 5th September, 2019 and 3rd 
October, 2019 including those already reviewed by the Interim Assistant Director 
(Regeneration and Built Environment), Principal Legal Officer and the Chair of 
Licensing Regulatory Committee was summarised in the report.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

REFERRED ITEMS

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION

27 – Elected Members Code of Conduct - Licensing Matters

The Public Protection Manager reported that the Elected Members Code of Conduct 
- Licensing Matters set out principles to guide Members and Officers in determining 
licensing applications and making other decisions within the terms of reference of the 
Licensing Committee, Licensing Sub-Committee and the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee (the Licensing Committees). 

The Licensing Code of Conduct provided guidance to Members on private interests, 
‘pre-judgement’, political group meetings, debate and lobbying, natural justice, 
hospitality and the Council’s statutory duties.

The Licensing Committees had a very important role to play in the life of the 
Borough; they determined licensing applications under many different statutory 
regimes - from alcohol and gambling licences to taxi licences and street trading 
consents and many others. The Committee’s decisions were very important to the 
applicants since they could affect their ability to earn their living and could have 
serious financial consequences. However, the role of licensing was the protection of 
the public and was also important for the safeguarding of vulnerable adults and 
children, its impact on health and safety and public safety, the local and wider 
community and competing economic interests.

Members of the Licensing Committees should determine licensing matters in the 
interests of the whole community of the Borough, with regard to the relevant 
legislation, policy and guidance and should not prejudge licensing applications nor 
do anything that may reasonably be taken as giving an indication of having 
prejudged licensing applications.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Members must consider carefully whether it was right for them to participate in a 
matter before the Committee and be able to approach it with an open mind and 
consider an application on its own merits. In order to maintain the integrity of the 
licensing system, Members should be careful to ensure that any interests do not 
unduly influence their decisions.

In addition, the Licensing Code of Conduct provided guidance to Members on ‘pre-
judgement’, political group meetings, debate and lobbying, natural justice, hospitality 
and the Council’s statutory duties. 

A proposed Licensing Code of Conduct was attached as an appendix to the report.

RESOLVED:- That Members considered and recommended the Licensing Code to 
the Executive Committee to approve and recommended the Council adopted this 
Code into Part 5 of the Constitution.

The meeting closed at 3.10 pm.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Special Meeting: Wednesday 18th December, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister (Chairman), Assouad, Biggins, Gawne, Hall, R. 
McClure, McLeavy, Maddox and Wall.

Officers Present:- Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Ivor Churcher 
(Commercial Team Leader), Katherine Benson (Licensing Officer) and Sharron 
Rushton (Democratic Services Officer).

Legal Representative:- Paul O’Donnell (Local Authority Retained Solicitor).

28 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 2 (Minute No. 30) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

29 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barlow and Seward (Vice-
Chairman).  

30 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence – Review of Delegated 
Decision

The Public Protection Manager reported on a review regarding a Licensed Hackney 
Carriage Driver and Private Hire Driver.  He set out details concerning the review and 
the Committee’s policy regarding such matters.  The applicant and representatives 
attended the meeting and addressed the Committee.

RESOLVED:- That the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licences be 
revoked.

The meeting closed at 3.05 pm.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part 1

        LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE                 

Date of Meeting: 23rd January 2020

Reporting Officer:   Commercial Team Leader   

(D)

Title: Special Inspection: South Lakes Safari Zoo t/a 
Cumbria Zoo Co Ltd.

Summary and Purpose of Report: 

Cumbria Zoo Company Limited (CZCL) holds a zoo licence issued on 11th 
May 2017 to operate a zoo at premises known as South Lakes Safari Zoo 
(“the Zoo”), Melton Terrace, Lindal-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA12 0LU.

This report advises the Licensing Regulatory Committee on the findings of the 
Special Inspection carried out on 22nd November 2019.

The report also advises the Committee of the contents of a letter received 
from the Zoos Veterinary Officer in relation to ventilation in several of the 
animal enclosures at the Zoo.

Recommendations: 

That the Licensing Regulatory Committee: 

       Note the content of the report and acknowledge the progress being made 
at South Lakes Safari Zoo.

Report

On 5th September 2019 the Licensing Regulatory Committee requested that 
the Commercial Team Leader and Dr Matt Brash, the Councils Professional 
Veterinary Advisor to carry out a Special Inspection, within eight weeks, to 
ensure that adequate record keeping had been implemented at the Zoo. 

Issues relating to record keeping had been highlighted in Dr Matt Brash’s 
report of 17th May 2019 which was considered at the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee meeting on 5th September 2019. 

It is a condition of license that the operator of the Zoo keep up- to- date 
records of the animals, including numbers of different animals, acquisitions,  

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



births, death, disposals and escapes, causes of deaths and the health of the 
animals.

In addition to the above Dr Matt Brash was not satisfied that adequate 
ventilation was being provided within a number of areas where animals were 
being kept.

It is a condition of license that the Zoo operator accommodate and keep the 
animals in a manner consistent with the standards set out in the Secretary of 
State’s Standards of Zoo Practice.

On the 5th September 2019 the Licencing Regulatory Committee requested 
that the Zoo operator provide a letter from their collection vet within 3 weeks 
to confirm the ventilation in the four areas, namely the Meat Kitchen, 
Tambopata, Giraffe House and Veterinary Hospital was suitable for animals 
throughout the whole of the year.

On 23rd September 2019 the Council received a letter from Karen Archer 
BVSc BSc (Hons) Cert AVP(ZM) MRCVS RCVS Advanced Practitioner in 
Zoological Medicine advising that she had no concerns over ventilation. 
Attached at Appendix 1.

On 22nd November 2019 a Special Inspection was conducted by Dr Matt 
Brash and the Commercial Team Leader.

An excerpt of which is as follows:

“Findings at November 2019

1. A new daily diary system has been instigated, with a single 
sheet/day/section. This includes a number of different headings on each 
sheet for the keepers to complete, thus prompting greater detail to be 
kept. These are reasonably complete, with some sections putting in more 
detail than others.

2. The back payments to Species360 have been made, and so full access 
to the ZIMS has been granted.

3. A part time Zoo Secretary has been employed, working 24 hours/week, 
over four days. Her role is solely to ensure that the data is all collated and 
then transferred onto ZIMS. 

4. Considerable efforts have been made to input the backlog of data from 
the last year, and the zoo is to be commended for this effort. Whilst most 
of the data has been inputted, there are still some gaps. For example, 
where animals do not have an individual identity, such as many of the 
water fowl, squirrels or meerkats, their data has not all been entered. 
Similarly not all the veterinary data has been entered to date. It is 
important that all relevant data for all animals within the collection is 
maintained.

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



Conclusion

The zoo are commended for the effort that they have put in over the last 
four months, inputting all the back log of data. They are encouraged to 
ensure that all animals that can be easily identified are, e.g. by microchip 
or leg band, enabling individual records to be maintained.
In my opinion the Zoo are now complying with the requirements of 9.1 and 
9.3 of SSSMZP.”

The full report is attached at Appendix 2.

Recommendation: 

That the Licensing Regulatory Committee:- 

Note the content of the report and acknowledge the progress being 
made at South Lakes Safari Zoo.

Reasons for recommendation

1. Cumbria Zoo Company Limited’s collection vet has provided a letter, 
within the required timescale, confirming that the ventilation in the four 
areas, namely the Meat Kitchen, Tambopata, Giraffe House and 
Veterinary Hospital was suitable for animals throughout the whole of 
the year.

2. The Council and our Professional Veterinary Advisor, Dr Brash, have 
carried out a special inspection on the 22nd November 2019. The 
conclusions of which were that: ‘The zoo are commended for the effort 
that they have put in over the last four months, inputting all the back log 
of data. They are encouraged to ensure that all animals that can be 
easily identified are, e.g. by microchip or leg band, enabling individual 
records to be maintained. In my opinion the Zoo are now complying 
with the requirements of 9.1 and 9.3 of SSSMZP.’

Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

The Zoo requires a licence to be able to open to the public and the Zoo 
Licensing Act 1981 makes the local authority responsible for administering the 
Licence. Anyone running a Zoo without a licence is guilty of an offence.

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



11  Special inspections

(1)     The local authority may at any time carry out a special inspection 
of a zoo for which a licence granted by them is in force if they consider 
it appropriate to do so having regard to--

(a)     any periodical report on the zoo made to them pursuant to 
section 10; or

(b)     any representations made to them on behalf of a properly 
constituted body concerned with any aspect of the management of 
zoos or the welfare of animals; or

(c)     any report on the zoo made to them pursuant to an inspection 
[in accordance with section 9A or] under the provisions of section 12; 
or

(d)     any other circumstances which in their opinion call for 
investigation.

(2)     A special inspection under this section shall be conducted by 
persons who appear to the local authority to be competent for the 
purpose and who are authorised by the authority to conduct the 
inspection.

(3)     Where the purpose of the inspection relates to the health of 
animals, the inspectors shall include (or, if one, the inspector shall be) 
a veterinary surgeon or veterinary practitioner with experience of 
animals of kinds kept in the zoo.

(4)     On appointing persons under subsection (2), the authority shall 
communicate to them and to the operator of the zoo the purpose and 
scope of the inspection.

(5)     Paragraphs (c) to (e) of subsection (4) and subsections (5) to (7) 
of section 10 apply to a special inspection as they apply to a periodical 
inspection except that the references in subsections (4)(d), (4)(e) and 
(5) to features and records and improvements are references only to 
features and records and improvements relevant to the purpose and 
scope of the special inspection.

The Local Authority’s power to alter a licence is contained within Section 16 
of the same Act

(1) At any time after the grant of a licence under this Act, it may be 
altered by the local authority if in their opinion it is necessary or 
desirable to do so for ensuring the proper conduct of the zoo during the 
period of the licence (whether their opinion arises from an inspectors’ 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



report or an alteration of standards specified under section 9 or 
otherwise). 

(4) allows the licence to be altered by varying, cancelling or attaching a 
condition to the licence (or a combination of any of those methods).

Section 16A  Enforcement of licence conditions

(1)     Subsection (2) applies where the local authority, after giving the 
licence holder an opportunity to be heard, are not satisfied that a 
condition attached to a licence granted by them under this Act is met in 
relation to the zoo or a section of it.
(2)     Unless subsection (3) applies, the authority shall make a direction 
specifying-

(a)     the licence condition which they are not satisfied is met;
(b)     whether they are not satisfied that that condition is met in relation 
to--

(i)     the zoo; or
(ii)     a section of the zoo, and if so, which section;

(c)     steps to be taken by the licence holder to ensure that that 
condition is met in relation to the zoo (or, if a section of the zoo is 
specified under paragraph (b)(ii), in relation to that section) within a 
period specified in the direction, which may not exceed two years from 
the date of the direction; and
(d)     whether the zoo or a section of it is required to be closed to the 
public during that period or any part of it specified in the direction.

(3)     This subsection applies if the authority have power to make a zoo 
closure direction under section 16B(5) and they exercise that power.
(4)     The authority may, after giving the licence holder an opportunity to 
be heard, make a direction under this subsection varying a direction 
under subsection (2) (including such a direction as varied by a direction 
under this subsection).
(5)     A direction under subsection (4) may increase the period specified 
in the direction under subsection (2)(c) or (d), but the period as increased 
must not exceed two years beginning with the date of the direction under 
subsection (2).
(6)     A direction under subsection (2) (including such a direction as 
varied by a direction under subsection (4)) may be revoked by a further 
direction of the authority.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



There is a right of appeal under Section 18 to the Magistrate’s Court if the 
holder of the licence wishes to challenge the decisions of the Committee.

18  Appeals

(1)     A person aggrieved by--
(a)     the refusal to grant a licence;
(b)     any condition attached to a licence;
(c)     any variation or cancellation of a condition;
(d)     the refusal to approve the transfer of a licence;
(e)     a direction under section 13(8)(c) or 16A(2) or any variation of 
such a direction;
(f)     a zoo closure direction;
(g)     the refusal to approve a plan prepared under section 16E(2);
(h)     a direction under section 16E(6) or any variation of such a 
direction; or
(i)     any arrangements under section 16E(7) or (8), may appeal to a 
magistrates' court. 

(2)     Any such appeal shall be brought within [twenty-eight] days from the 
date on which the person wishing to appeal receives written notification of 
the authority's decision [as to the matter in question]; but an appeal may 
be brought under this section whether or not the authority's decision was 
made in pursuance of a direction of the Secretary of State under this Act.

(3)     On an appeal under this section to a magistrates' court, the court 
may confirm, vary or reverse the local authority's decision and generally 
give such directions as it thinks proper, having regard to the provisions of 
this Act.

(5)     The procedure on an appeal to a magistrates' court under this 
section shall be by way of complaint for an order, and the Magistrates' 
Courts Act 1980 shall apply to the proceedings.

The Council have the power to prosecute for a failure to meet a licence 
condition under Section 19 of the Act.

(ii) Risk Assessment

Section 16A  Enforcement of licence conditions (as above) applies

Section 19 of the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 - Offences and penalties

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



(2) If the operator of a zoo fails without reasonable excuse to comply 
with any condition for the time being attached to a licence for the zoo 
granted under this Act and held by him, he is guilty of an offence.

(4) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding [level 4 on the standard scale] for an 
offence under subsection (1), (2), (3A), (3B), (3C), (3E), or (3F) and 
[level 3 on the standard scale] for an offence under subsection (3), (3D) 
or (3G).

(5) Where an offence under this section committed by a body corporate 
is proved to have been committed with the consent or connivance of, or 
to have been attributed to any neglect on the part of, any director, 
manager, secretary or any other similar officer of the body corporate, or 
any person who was purporting to act in any such capacity, he, as well 
as the body corporate, is guilty of that offence and liable to be proceeded 
against and punished accordingly.

(iii) Financial Implications

There are no Financial implications for the Council as this report is intended 
only as an update on the Special Inspection carried out on 22nd November 
2019. 

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

Not applicable

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The ZLA contains requirements to ensure the public who visit zoos can do so 
safely and to ensure that the wider public are not put at risk by the Zoo’s 
operation.

Report Author
Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader)

Background Papers

Licensing Regulatory Committee meeting 5th September 2019  Agenda item 9, 
pages 23-88.
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g309/Public%20reports%20pack%2005th-
Sep-2019%2014.00%20Licensing%20Regulatory%20Committee.pdf?T=10

Page 25

Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g309/Public%20reports%20pack%2005th-Sep-2019%2014.00%20Licensing%20Regulatory%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/g309/Public%20reports%20pack%2005th-Sep-2019%2014.00%20Licensing%20Regulatory%20Committee.pdf?T=10


Licensing Regulatory Committee Meeting 5th September 2019 Decision Document.
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/s1892/Licensing%20Reg%205th%20S

eptember%202019%20-%20Zoo%20FINAL.pdf

Page 26

Agenda Item 7

https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/s1892/Licensing%20Reg%205th%20September%202019%20-%20Zoo%20FINAL.pdf
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/documents/s1892/Licensing%20Reg%205th%20September%202019%20-%20Zoo%20FINAL.pdf


None.

23rd September 2019

Dear Mr. Churcher,

RE: Ventilation at Safari Zoo

I can confirm that I visited the following four areas on the 19th September following 
concerns over inadequate ventilation. I will consider each in turn.

Top giraffe house
I can confirm that a large extractor fan has been fitted on the back wall of the giraffe 
house. I am informed by the zoo that this is a 18 inch variable speed controlled 
exhaust axial fan, designed for use in large workshops/warehouses/ animal 
buildings.  On the day of my visit the weather was reasonably warm and the giraffe 
were outside. The doors were open and the extractor fan was running. The odour 
was as to be expected for a building housing giraffe but there was no overpowering 
smell of ammonia, and I had no concerns.  We discussed winter management of the 
giraffe and I will continue to visit this house as the seasons change in order to 
monitor the ventilation and temperature.

Indoor wader area Tambopata aviary
I can confirm that an extractor fan identical to that in the giraffe house has been 
installed on the back wall of the indoor wader area. In addition to this a window has 
been created adjacent to the door, allowing for greater air flow whilst also providing 
a second access choice for the birds.  This is being utilised well. Again, the odour was 
as to be expected for a building housing these species, but there were no 
overpowering smells and I had no concerns. We discussed management and cleaning 
regimes and ways to reduce the excrement load within the house.  Again, I will 
continue to visit this enclosure as the seasons change.

Meat preparation area
The changes previously described by the zoo were in place during my visit and there 
was no overpowering smell of ammonia from the lion house. We discussed the use 
of insect mesh to further control the flies, although I understand that a new fly trap 
has already been installed.

Vet room
In my opinion the issue in the vet room is not one of ventilation, but of temperature 
control. I can confirm that a 10L 3 speed Evaporative Cooler has been installed in the 
animal accommodation room in the veterinary treatment area. The temperature in 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



the vet room is monitored to ensure that the drugs are kept at appropriate 
temperatures and a cool box is available if the temperature is exceeded. I do not 
foresee a problem with temperature in the vet room until next summer, when we 
will know if the Evaporative Cooler is adequate. I also understand that there are 
plans to relocate the vet room.  I think this would be very beneficial in terms of 
access, animal accommodation, isolation etc. However, I appreciate that there are 
other priorities in the short term.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

Kind regards,

Karen Archer BVSc BSc (Hons) CertAVP (ZM) MRCVS
RCVS Advanced Practitioner in Zoological Medicine

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Veterinary report on the Special Inspection of South Lake Safari Zoo on 22nd November 
2019

At the request of Barrow Borough Council I accompanied Ivor Churcher Commercial 
Team Leader  in a Special Inspection of South Lakes Safari Zoo, specifically to 
examine the animal records. This was undertaken after the Annual Informal 
inspection on 17th May   2019  had noted that there was a lack of suitable Animal 
Records.

The ZLA requires zoos to maintain records of all the stock in their collection. The 
SSSMZP states; 
9.1 Records must be kept and maintained of all individually recognizable animals and 
groups of animals in the zoo. 
9.3 Records must be kept up to date, and be available on site for six years. 

Present representing the zoo on 22nd November 2019  were Kim Zee Banks, Animal 
Manager and David Armitage, Animal Manager.

Findings in May 2019

CZCL maintains records in a number of ways. Daily diaries are kept for the regular 
recording of information about the animals’ health and behaviour on a daily basis 
(e.g. minor ailments, husbandry issues, like laying an egg, or not eating food). 
Medical records are kept separately as word documents written by the veterinary 
surgeon or her team. These medical records comprise records of routine visits, 
individual animal treatments, pathological and post mortem records.

All of these records are then normally then transcribed onto the Zoo Information 
Management System (ZIMS), as a permanent record. ZIMS is a worldwide, cloud 
based record keeping system used by most large zoos, for the long term storage of 
information.

At the inspection in May, the ZIMS records were approximately eight months behind 
being maintained. Therefore all the animal records can only be either found in the 
daily diaries, or as the veterinary records.

The veterinary records were adequate, up to date, and being kept as a single word 
document. This is backed up. They are comprehensive, albeit difficult to track an 
individual records. They are waiting to be transcribed into ZIMS.

The daily diaries however were poor, sparsely populated with information in some 
instances, although or in other areas more comprehensive.  For example in one case, 
no information has been written for the months of November and December. 

In many areas they did not have the required information, for example regarding the 
behavioural or life history of the animals, unusual occurrences noted, changes in 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



diet/ or food consumed etc. There was no back up system in place for these records 
and if lost means that all the husbandry and routine information regarding the 
animals would be lost. 

Licensing Regulatory Committee Record of Decision.
At the Licensing Regulatory Committee meeting on 5th September 2019 the 
committee agreed to note the Commercial Team Leaders report and ask that a 
Special Inspection be conducted in eight weeks time to confirm that the correct 
animal records were in place.

Findings at November 2019
1. A new daily diary system has been instigated, with a single sheet/day/section. This 
includes a number of different headings on each sheet for the keepers to complete, 
thus prompting greater detail to be kept. These are reasonably complete, with some 
sections putting in more detail than others.

2. The back payments to Species360 have been made, and so full access to the ZIMS 
has been granted.

3. A part time Zoo Secretary has been employed, working 24 hours/week, over four 
days. Her role is solely to ensure that the data is all collated and then transferred 
onto ZIMS. 

4. Considerable efforts have been made to input the backlog of data from the last 
year, and the zoo is to be commended for this effort. Whilst most of the data has 
been inputted, there are still some gaps. For example, where animals do not have an 
individual identity, such as many of the water fowl, squirrels or meerkats, their data 
has not all been entered. Similarly not all the veterinary data has been entered to 
date. It is important that all relevant data for all animals within the collection is 
maintained.

Conclusion

The zoo are commended for the effort that they have put in over the last four 
months, inputting all the back log of data. They are encouraged to ensure that all 
animals that can be easily identified are, e.g. by microchip or leg band, enabling 
individual records to be maintained.
In my opinion the Zoo are now complying with the requirements of 9.1 and 9.3 of 
SSSMZP.

Signed 

Dr M G I Brash Bvet Med Cert Zoo Med MRCVS

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part 1

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 23rd January 2020

Reporting Officer:  Public Protection Manager    

(D)

Title: Licensing Delegated Decisions (October - December  
2019)

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report summarises the decisions made under Part 3(2), Section I of the 
Constitution, Scheme of Delegations to Officers with regard to the Councils 
Licensing functions.

Recommendations: 

That members consider the summary of decisions.

Report

At its meeting of the 5th September 2019, Members requested a monthly 
report of the Public Protection Managers delegated decisions.

Below is a summary of the delegated decisions made between 4th October 
2019 and 31st December 2019 and include those already reviewed by the 
Interim Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment), Principal 
Legal Officer and the Chair of Licensing Regulatory Committee. 

Alcohol Licensed Premises (Automatic entitlement) – Gambling Act 
2005 (Granted) 3

Dog Breeding Establishment (Granted) 2

Dog Breeding Establishment (Renewed) 1

Providing Boarding in kennels for dogs (Renewed) 2

Home Boarding Licence (Renewed) 1

Providing Boarding in Catteries for Cats (Renewed) 2

Pet Shop Licence (Renewed) 2

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licences
(Granted / Renewed): 50

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



Suspended (DBS Expired) 3
Suspended (Medical) 2
Suspended  (Licence Expired) 9
Suspended (Other) 1
Refused 1
Revoked 1
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licences (Granted / 
Renewed inc’ Change of Vehicles and Transfers): 90

Suspended (Missed Vehicle Test): 26
Suspended (Licence Expired): 12
House to House / Pub to Pub Collections & Street Collections Permits 
(Granted): 11

Registered Lottery (Granted): 8
Provision of Selling Animals as Pets (Granted): 2
Street Trading Consent (Granted) 2
Scrap Metal Site Licence (Granted) 1

Personal Licence (Alcohol) (Granted): 12
Premises Licence (Dis-Application of DPS) (Granted) 1

Temporary Event Notices (Licensing Act 2003) (Acknowledged): 13

Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

There is a need to ensure that the policies and procedures for determining 
licences are consistent and fair to avoid legal challenge. The decision must be 
taken in the interests of public safety and should be fair, reasonable, 
proportionate and in accordance with human rights and natural justice 
principles.

In particular, Sections 51(1) and 59(1) of the Local Government (Misc. 
Provisions) Act 1976 provides that the Council must assess whether 
individuals’ are suitable persons to hold a drivers’ licence be it hackney 
carriage or private hire.  

(ii) Risk Assessment

If the Council does not fulfil its licensing duties, it may be exposed to legal 
challenges.

(iii) Financial Implications

If a successful legal challenge is made against the Council, costs and  
compensation might be payable.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Report Author: Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager)

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	LSREG18DEC19

	7 Cumbria Zoo Special Inspection Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Licensing Delegated Decisions (October - December 2019)

